
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday November 17th, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the November 17th, 2025 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  
 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not 
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda, 
please contact the Town Manager.  

b. Mail    •York County Sheriff Report    

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any – 

 
ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief – Review/Approve EMS Billing Fee Schedule 
b. Treasurer – Expense Report 
c. Parks & Rec Report 
d. Town Manager Report  
e. Town Clerk Report 
f. ECO ME Rep Report 

 
ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Cemetery Committee – Request for approval of funds for tree removal 
b. Review/ Sign Notice of Determination of Abandonment for Old Post Road 
c. Discussion on Office Closures Due to Limited Staffing – Friday, December 26 and Friday, January 2 
d. Review/ Approve Funky Bow Special Amusement Permit  
e. KerryJo Sampson – Discussion of outreach to local organizations for food and clothing donations  
f. KerryJo Sampson – Discussion of public seminar on income tax basics 
g. Joseph Wagner – Discussion of proposal to review Arundel Zoning Ordinance 
h. Review/ Approve Committee Resignation – Parks & Rec 
i. Review/ Approve Committee Resignation – IT Committee 
j. Review/ Approve Committee Resignation – Ordinance Review Committee 

 
ITEM #6 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 10/20/2025 
b. Review / Approve meeting minutes 11/03/2025 

 
ITEM #7  SIGN WARRANTS  

a. Payroll Warrant #21 in the amount of $31,965.12 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #22 (FY2026) in the amount of $134,650.90 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #23 (FY2026) in the amount of $5,258.72 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1 M.R.S.A § 405(6)(A) – Discussion regarding personnel matters 
 
ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail





REG 

1401 

FIRE COMMISSION REGULATION Revised: DRAFT 

Appendix 1 – EMS Billing Fee Schedule 

LDFC | R1401 Appendix 1; EMS Billing Fee Schedule Page 1 

References: (a) GMFR Inter-Local Agreement

1.0) Fee Schedule: The following are fees charged for Emergency Medical Services (EMS). 

1.1) (A0425) Mileage  $21/mile 
1.2) (A0429) Basic Life Support $811 
1.3) (A0427) Advanced Life Support 1 $1,155 
1.4) (A0433) Advanced Life Support 2 $1,733 
1.5) BLS Non-Emergency  $348 
1.6) ALS Non-Emergency  $464 
1.7) No Transport w/Interventions $400 
1.8) ALS Intercept  $350 

2.0) Effective: These fees are effective starting January 01, 2026, until so reviewed/changed. 

3.0) Approval: In accordance with Reference (a) the Selectboards of Lyman and Dayton 
authorize and approve this fee schedule. 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Lyman Selectboard  Dayton Selectboard 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Lyman Selectboard  Dayton Selectboard 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Lyman Selectboard  Dayton Selectboard 

______________________________  
Lyman Selectboard 

______________________________  
Lyman Selectboard 

ITEM #4: (a.) GMFR EMS Billing Fee



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 1

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

101 - SALARIES 887,511.00 0.00 887,511.00 279,422.84 0.00 608,088.16

    11 - TOWN HALL 540,222.00 0.00 540,222.00 185,163.02 0.00 355,058.98

        10 - SALARIES 540,222.00 0.00 540,222.00 185,163.02 0.00 355,058.98

            101 - TOWN MGR 107,213.00 0.00 107,213.00 41,235.80 0.00 65,977.20

            103 - HR & FINANCE 83,535.00 0.00 83,535.00 32,128.80 0.00 51,406.20

            105 - TOWN CLERK/T 91,772.00 0.00 91,772.00 25,542.70 0.00 66,229.30

            106 - ADMIN CLERK 88,172.00 0.00 88,172.00 30,843.40 0.00 57,328.60

            115 - ASSESSOR 81,375.00 0.00 81,375.00 31,298.10 0.00 50,076.90

            117 - ASSESSING AS 20,155.00 0.00 20,155.00 4,701.54 0.00 15,453.46

            120 - BLDGS & GROU 68,000.00 0.00 68,000.00 10,750.00 0.00 57,250.00

            143 - ELECTRICIAN 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,662.68 0.00 -8,662.68

    13 - ELECTIONS 4,822.00 0.00 4,822.00 999.87 0.00 3,822.13

        10 - SALARIES 4,822.00 0.00 4,822.00 999.87 0.00 3,822.13

            182 - BALLOT CLERK 4,472.00 0.00 4,472.00 999.87 0.00 3,472.13

            183 - TM MODERATOR 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

    17 - PLANNING 114,249.00 0.00 114,249.00 36,888.67 0.00 77,360.33

        10 - SALARIES 114,249.00 0.00 114,249.00 36,888.67 0.00 77,360.33

            141 - CEO 75,657.00 0.00 75,657.00 27,591.20 0.00 48,065.80

            142 - CEO CLERK 33,592.00 0.00 33,592.00 8,672.46 0.00 24,919.54

            147 - PB 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 625.01 0.00 4,374.99

    18 - APPEALS BD 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

        10 - SALARIES 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

            148 - APPEALS BOAR 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

    21 - RECREATION 4,230.00 0.00 4,230.00 1,057.50 0.00 3,172.50

        10 - SALARIES 4,230.00 0.00 4,230.00 1,057.50 0.00 3,172.50

            127 - REC DIRECT 4,230.00 0.00 4,230.00 1,057.50 0.00 3,172.50

    31 - TRANSFER STA 139,382.00 0.00 139,382.00 31,889.19 0.00 107,492.81

        10 - SALARIES 139,382.00 0.00 139,382.00 31,889.19 0.00 107,492.81

            131 - TRF STATION 139,382.00 0.00 139,382.00 31,889.19 0.00 107,492.81

    51 - ROADS 45,444.00 0.00 45,444.00 17,478.50 0.00 27,965.50

        10 - SALARIES 45,444.00 0.00 45,444.00 17,478.50 0.00 27,965.50

            151 - RD COMM 45,444.00 0.00 45,444.00 17,478.50 0.00 27,965.50

    71 - GA 3,626.00 0.00 3,626.00 0.00 0.00 3,626.00

        10 - SALARIES 3,626.00 0.00 3,626.00 0.00 0.00 3,626.00

            171 - GA DIRECT 3,626.00 0.00 3,626.00 0.00 0.00 3,626.00

    72 - ACO 7,966.00 0.00 7,966.00 3,063.80 0.00 4,902.20

        10 - SALARIES 7,966.00 0.00 7,966.00 3,063.80 0.00 4,902.20

ITEM #4: (b.) Expense Report



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 2

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

101 - SALARIES CONT'D

            175 - ACO 7,966.00 0.00 7,966.00 3,063.80 0.00 4,902.20

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 27,220.00 0.00 27,220.00 2,882.29 0.00 24,337.71

        10 - SALARIES 27,220.00 0.00 27,220.00 2,882.29 0.00 24,337.71

            179 - HEALTH OFFIC 1,553.00 0.00 1,553.00 0.00 0.00 1,553.00

            180 - BUDGET COMM 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 25.00 0.00 1,475.00

            191 - EXTRA TIME 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 7.29 0.00 1,492.71

            194 - COMP ABS 1,267.00 0.00 1,267.00 0.00 0.00 1,267.00

            196 - INCENTIVE PA 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00

            199 - SELECT BOARD 19,400.00 0.00 19,400.00 2,850.00 0.00 16,550.00

102 - BENEFITS 295,897.00 0.00 295,897.00 100,074.78 0.00 195,822.22

    11 - TOWN HALL 10,495.00 0.00 10,495.00 3,310.64 0.00 7,184.36

        20 - BENEFITS 10,495.00 0.00 10,495.00 3,310.64 0.00 7,184.36

            280 - TRAINING 8,590.00 0.00 8,590.00 2,633.75 0.00 5,956.25

            290 - MEMB & DUES 1,905.00 0.00 1,905.00 676.89 0.00 1,228.11

    13 - ELECTIONS 540.00 0.00 540.00 0.00 0.00 540.00

        20 - BENEFITS 540.00 0.00 540.00 0.00 0.00 540.00

            280 - TRAINING 540.00 0.00 540.00 0.00 0.00 540.00

    17 - BUILDINGS CO 1,460.00 0.00 1,460.00 55.00 0.00 1,405.00

        20 - BENEFITS 1,460.00 0.00 1,460.00 55.00 0.00 1,405.00

            280 - TRAINING 1,420.00 0.00 1,420.00 55.00 0.00 1,365.00

            290 - MEMB & DUES 40.00 0.00 40.00 0.00 0.00 40.00

    31 - TRANFER STAT 300.00 0.00 300.00 120.00 0.00 180.00

        20 - BENEFITS 300.00 0.00 300.00 120.00 0.00 180.00

            280 - TRAINING 300.00 0.00 300.00 120.00 0.00 180.00

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 283,102.00 0.00 283,102.00 96,589.14 0.00 186,512.86

        20 - BENEFITS 283,102.00 0.00 283,102.00 96,589.14 0.00 186,512.86

            201 - FICA 67,895.00 0.00 67,895.00 21,969.95 0.00 45,925.05

            205 - PFML 4,438.00 0.00 4,438.00 1,360.43 0.00 3,077.57

            210 - HEALTH 144,691.00 0.00 144,691.00 55,332.92 0.00 89,358.08

            211 - DENTAL 5,852.00 0.00 5,852.00 1,700.75 0.00 4,151.25

            214 - LIFE NO MED 380.00 0.00 380.00 175.50 0.00 204.50

            230 - 457B ER MATC 21,594.00 0.00 21,594.00 6,463.95 0.00 15,130.05

            231 - MPERS ER 38,252.00 0.00 38,252.00 9,585.64 0.00 28,666.36

110 - GEN ADMIN 163,544.00 0.00 163,544.00 66,308.65 22,907.50 74,327.85



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 3

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

110 - GEN ADMIN CONT'D

    11 - TOWN HALL 149,629.00 0.00 149,629.00 62,960.65 22,855.00 63,813.35

        32 - CTRCT SVS EQ 74,412.00 0.00 74,412.00 32,342.74 21,680.00 20,389.26

            310 - PROF SVS 74,412.00 0.00 74,412.00 32,342.74 21,680.00 20,389.26

        39 - CONT SVS OTH 12,330.00 0.00 12,330.00 1,813.10 875.00 9,641.90

            315 - MEMB & DUES 7,600.00 0.00 7,600.00 50.00 0.00 7,550.00

            399 - OTHER 4,730.00 0.00 4,730.00 1,763.10 875.00 2,091.90

        50 - UTILITIES 8,720.00 0.00 8,720.00 3,012.42 0.00 5,707.58

            580 - COMM 8,720.00 0.00 8,720.00 3,012.42 0.00 5,707.58

        60 - SUPPLIES 19,757.00 0.00 19,757.00 8,035.26 0.00 11,721.74

            610 - SUPPLIES 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 4,055.28 0.00 7,944.72

            650 - POSTAGE 7,757.00 0.00 7,757.00 3,979.98 0.00 3,777.02

        80 - ADVER, PRINT 18,450.00 0.00 18,450.00 973.76 300.00 17,176.24

            810 - ADVERTISE 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 300.00 2,200.00

            830 - FORMS 8,350.00 0.00 8,350.00 973.76 0.00 7,376.24

            850 - TOWN REPORT 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00

            860 - TAX BILLS 4,600.00 0.00 4,600.00 0.00 0.00 4,600.00

        90 - OTHER 15,960.00 0.00 15,960.00 16,783.37 0.00 -823.37

            910 - MILEAGE/TRAV 14,960.00 0.00 14,960.00 1,398.33 0.00 13,561.67

            911 - MI/TRAV ELE 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,893.94 0.00 -2,893.94

            915 - EE RECONIT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 994.10 0.00 5.90

            998 - LIBRARY FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,497.00 0.00 -11,497.00

    17 - BLDGS & CODE 9,415.00 0.00 9,415.00 3,348.00 52.50 6,014.50

        39 - CONT SVS OTH 2,165.00 0.00 2,165.00 2,036.00 0.00 129.00

            315 - MEMB & DUES 1,985.00 0.00 1,985.00 1,985.00 0.00 0.00

            399 - OTHER 180.00 0.00 180.00 51.00 0.00 129.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 335.43 0.00 864.57

            610 - SUPPLIES 200.00 0.00 200.00 279.98 0.00 -79.98

            650 - POSTAGE 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 55.45 0.00 944.55

        80 - ADVER, PRINT 850.00 0.00 850.00 0.00 52.50 797.50

            810 - ADVERTISE 850.00 0.00 850.00 0.00 52.50 797.50

        90 - OTHER 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 976.57 0.00 4,223.43

            910 - MILEAGE/TRAV 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 976.57 0.00 4,223.43

    19 - COMMITTEES 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00

        90 - OTHER 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00

            999 - MISC 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00

115 - ELECTIONS 11,350.00 0.00 11,350.00 39.25 0.00 11,310.75



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 4

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

115 - ELECTIONS CONT'D

    13 - ELECTIONS 11,350.00 0.00 11,350.00 39.25 0.00 11,310.75

        39 - CONT SVS OTH 7,800.00 0.00 7,800.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00

            399 - OTHER 7,800.00 0.00 7,800.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 39.25 0.00 2,160.75

            610 - SUPPLIES 200.00 0.00 200.00 39.25 0.00 160.75

            650 - POSTAGE 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00

        80 - ADVER, PRINT 400.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00

            810 - ADVERTISE 400.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00

        90 - OTHER 950.00 0.00 950.00 0.00 0.00 950.00

            910 - MILEAGE/TRAV 950.00 0.00 950.00 0.00 0.00 950.00

117 - GEN ADMIN IN 31,222.00 0.00 31,222.00 23,992.50 0.00 7,229.50

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 31,222.00 0.00 31,222.00 23,992.50 0.00 7,229.50

        38 - CONT SVS INS 31,222.00 0.00 31,222.00 23,992.50 0.00 7,229.50

            325 - INS PROP & C 18,564.00 0.00 18,564.00 17,968.00 0.00 596.00

            326 - INS W.C. 11,708.00 0.00 11,708.00 5,734.00 0.00 5,974.00

            327 - INS UNEMPLOY 850.00 0.00 850.00 218.50 0.00 631.50

            328 - INS VOLUNTEE 100.00 0.00 100.00 72.00 0.00 28.00

119 - CONTINGENCY 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00

    11 - TOWN HALL 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00

        90 - OTHER 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00

            999 - MISC 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00

125 - ACO 8,607.00 0.00 8,607.00 7,387.20 0.00 1,219.80

    72 - ACO 8,607.00 0.00 8,607.00 7,387.20 0.00 1,219.80

        39 - CONT SVS OTH 7,107.00 0.00 7,107.00 6,858.00 0.00 249.00

            381 - ACO 7,107.00 0.00 7,107.00 6,858.00 0.00 249.00

        90 - OTHER 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 529.20 0.00 970.80

            910 - MILEAGE/TRAV 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 529.20 0.00 970.80

128 - HHS G/A 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,410.54 0.00 89.46

    71 - GA 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,410.54 0.00 89.46

        39 - CONT SVS OTH 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,400.00 0.00 -400.00

            310 - PROF SVS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,400.00 0.00 -400.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 150.00 0.00 150.00 10.54 0.00 139.46

            610 - SUPPLIES 150.00 0.00 150.00 10.54 0.00 139.46



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 5

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

128 - HHS G/A CONT'D

        90 - OTHER 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

            910 - MILEAGE/TRAV 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00

129 - HHS SOCIAL S 1,131.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00 0.00

    75 - SOCIAL SERV 1,131.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00 0.00

        91 - OTHER SOC SV 1,131.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00 0.00

            999 - OTHER 1,131.00 0.00 1,131.00 1,131.00 0.00 0.00

131 - ROADS 855,440.00 0.00 855,440.00 194,859.41 0.00 660,580.59

    51 - ROADS 855,440.00 0.00 855,440.00 194,859.41 0.00 660,580.59

        33 - CONT PROF 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

            310 - PROF SERV 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 854,440.00 0.00 854,440.00 194,859.41 0.00 659,580.59

            482 - RDS/RESURFA 670,940.00 0.00 670,940.00 119,156.56 0.00 551,783.44

            483 - RDS/REPAIRS 183,500.00 0.00 183,500.00 75,702.85 0.00 107,797.15

141 - B&G CARE & M 30,500.00 0.00 30,500.00 7,771.29 0.00 22,728.71

    11 - TOWN HALL 15,620.00 0.00 15,620.00 5,234.48 0.00 10,385.52

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 11,895.00 0.00 11,895.00 4,446.00 0.00 7,449.00

            310 - PROF SVS 11,895.00 0.00 11,895.00 4,446.00 0.00 7,449.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 3,725.00 0.00 3,725.00 788.48 0.00 2,936.52

            410 - BLDGS & GROU 3,725.00 0.00 3,725.00 788.48 0.00 2,936.52

    21 - RECREATION 2,850.00 0.00 2,850.00 37.14 0.00 2,812.86

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,350.00 0.00 1,350.00 0.00 0.00 1,350.00

            310 - PROF SVS 1,350.00 0.00 1,350.00 0.00 0.00 1,350.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 37.14 0.00 1,462.86

            410 - BLDGS & GROU 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 37.14 0.00 1,462.86

    22 - BUNGANUT 5,140.00 0.00 5,140.00 1,413.67 0.00 3,726.33

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,140.00 0.00 1,140.00 680.00 0.00 460.00

            310 - PROF SVS 1,140.00 0.00 1,140.00 680.00 0.00 460.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 733.67 0.00 3,266.33

            410 - BLDGS & GROU 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 733.67 0.00 3,266.33

    23 - KBP 2,290.00 0.00 2,290.00 1,086.00 0.00 1,204.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 2,290.00 0.00 2,290.00 1,086.00 0.00 1,204.00

            310 - PROF SVS 2,290.00 0.00 2,290.00 1,086.00 0.00 1,204.00

    31 - TRANSFER STA 4,600.00 0.00 4,600.00 0.00 0.00 4,600.00



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 6

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

141 - B&G CARE & M CONT'D

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 3,450.00 0.00 3,450.00 0.00 0.00 3,450.00

            310 - PROF SVS 3,450.00 0.00 3,450.00 0.00 0.00 3,450.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 1,150.00 0.00 1,150.00 0.00 0.00 1,150.00

            410 - BLDGS & GROU 1,150.00 0.00 1,150.00 0.00 0.00 1,150.00

142 - B&G MOWING 54,798.00 0.00 54,798.00 33,769.50 0.00 21,028.50

    21 - RECREATION 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

            370 - MOWING 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

    51 - ROADS 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 11,400.00 0.00 600.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 11,400.00 0.00 600.00

            370 - MOWING 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 11,400.00 0.00 600.00

    90 - MISC 42,198.00 0.00 42,198.00 22,369.50 0.00 19,828.50

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 42,198.00 0.00 42,198.00 22,369.50 0.00 19,828.50

            370 - MOWING 42,198.00 0.00 42,198.00 22,369.50 0.00 19,828.50

143 - B&G PLOWING 693,140.00 0.00 693,140.00 215,603.33 305,536.00 172,000.67

    11 - TOWN HALL 4,640.00 0.00 4,640.00 773.33 0.00 3,866.67

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 4,640.00 0.00 4,640.00 773.33 0.00 3,866.67

            360 - PLOW & SAND 4,640.00 0.00 4,640.00 773.33 0.00 3,866.67

    22 - BUNGANUT 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 900.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 900.00

            360 - PLOW & SAND 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 900.00

    23 - KBP 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00

            360 - PLOW & SAND 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00

    31 - TRANSFER STA 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00

            360 - PLOW & SAND 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00

    51 - ROADS 678,900.00 0.00 678,900.00 214,830.00 305,536.00 158,534.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 678,900.00 0.00 678,900.00 214,830.00 305,536.00 158,534.00

            360 - PLOW & SAND 678,900.00 0.00 678,900.00 214,830.00 305,536.00 158,534.00

145 - B&G WASTE SV 18,620.00 0.00 18,620.00 6,132.50 0.00 12,487.50

    11 - TOWN HALL 1,820.00 0.00 1,820.00 175.00 0.00 1,645.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,820.00 0.00 1,820.00 175.00 0.00 1,645.00



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 7

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

145 - B&G WASTE SV CONT'D

            330 - WASTE SVS 1,820.00 0.00 1,820.00 175.00 0.00 1,645.00

    21 - RECREATION 4,230.00 0.00 4,230.00 1,635.00 0.00 2,595.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,710.00 0.00 1,710.00 795.00 0.00 915.00

            330 - WASTE SVS 1,710.00 0.00 1,710.00 795.00 0.00 915.00

        35 - CTRCT SVS WA 2,520.00 0.00 2,520.00 840.00 0.00 1,680.00

            331 - PROF PORTA P 2,520.00 0.00 2,520.00 840.00 0.00 1,680.00

    22 - BUNGANUT 7,130.00 0.00 7,130.00 2,472.50 0.00 4,657.50

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 2,660.00 0.00 2,660.00 420.00 0.00 2,240.00

            330 - WASTE SVS 2,660.00 0.00 2,660.00 420.00 0.00 2,240.00

        35 - CTRCT SVS WA 4,470.00 0.00 4,470.00 2,052.50 0.00 2,417.50

            331 - PROF PORTA P 4,470.00 0.00 4,470.00 2,052.50 0.00 2,417.50

    23 - KBP 4,080.00 0.00 4,080.00 1,335.00 0.00 2,745.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,560.00 0.00 1,560.00 495.00 0.00 1,065.00

            330 - WASTE SVS 1,560.00 0.00 1,560.00 495.00 0.00 1,065.00

        35 - CTRCT SVS WA 2,520.00 0.00 2,520.00 840.00 0.00 1,680.00

            331 - PROF PORTA P 2,520.00 0.00 2,520.00 840.00 0.00 1,680.00

    51 - ROADS 1,360.00 0.00 1,360.00 515.00 0.00 845.00

        31 - CTRCT SVS BL 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 305.00 0.00 695.00

            330 - WASTE SVS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 305.00 0.00 695.00

        35 - CTRCT SVS WA 360.00 0.00 360.00 210.00 0.00 150.00

            331 - PROF PORTA P 360.00 0.00 360.00 210.00 0.00 150.00

147 - B&G ENERGY 24,952.00 0.00 24,952.00 6,119.74 0.00 18,832.26

    11 - TOWN HALL 10,100.00 0.00 10,100.00 1,865.31 0.00 8,234.69

        50 - UTILITIES 10,100.00 0.00 10,100.00 1,865.31 0.00 8,234.69

            510 - PROPANE 3,200.00 0.00 3,200.00 0.00 0.00 3,200.00

            560 - ELECTRICITY 6,900.00 0.00 6,900.00 1,865.31 0.00 5,034.69

    21 - RECREATION 600.00 0.00 600.00 179.04 0.00 420.96

        50 - UTILITIES 600.00 0.00 600.00 179.04 0.00 420.96

            560 - ELECTRICITY 600.00 0.00 600.00 179.04 0.00 420.96

    22 - BUNGANUT 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 1,140.78 0.00 1,359.22

        50 - UTILITIES 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 1,140.78 0.00 1,359.22

            560 - ELECTRICITY 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 1,140.78 0.00 1,359.22

    23 - KBP 852.00 0.00 852.00 294.15 0.00 557.85

        50 - UTILITIES 852.00 0.00 852.00 294.15 0.00 557.85

            560 - ELECTRICITY 852.00 0.00 852.00 294.15 0.00 557.85



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 8

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

147 - B&G ENERGY CONT'D

    31 - TRANSFER STA 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 1,162.79 0.00 4,037.21

        50 - UTILITIES 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 1,162.79 0.00 4,037.21

            560 - ELECTRICITY 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 1,162.79 0.00 4,037.21

    51 - ROADS 5,700.00 0.00 5,700.00 1,477.67 0.00 4,222.33

        50 - UTILITIES 5,700.00 0.00 5,700.00 1,477.67 0.00 4,222.33

            560 - ELECTRICITY 5,700.00 0.00 5,700.00 1,477.67 0.00 4,222.33

148 - B&G SIGNS 6,050.00 0.00 6,050.00 1,297.61 0.00 4,752.39

    21 - RECREATION 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

            670 - SIGNS 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

    22 - BUNGANUT 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

            670 - SIGNS 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

    23 - KENNEBUNK PD 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

            670 - SIGNS 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

    31 - TRANSFER STA 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

        60 - SUPPLIES 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

            670 - SIGNS 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

    51 - ROADS 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 1,297.61 0.00 4,202.39

        60 - SUPPLIES 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 1,297.61 0.00 4,202.39

            670 - SIGNS 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 1,297.61 0.00 4,202.39

150 - TRF STATION 363,185.00 0.00 363,185.00 101,823.56 0.00 261,361.44

    31 - TRANSFER STA 363,185.00 0.00 363,185.00 101,823.56 0.00 261,361.44

        35 - CTRCT SVS WA 336,305.00 0.00 336,305.00 100,881.74 0.00 235,423.26

            310 - PROF SVS 3,505.00 0.00 3,505.00 1,246.00 0.00 2,259.00

            349 - PROF SVS CAN 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00 600.00 0.00 1,800.00

            350 - PROF SVS TIP 190,275.00 0.00 190,275.00 67,499.88 0.00 122,775.12

            351 - PROF SVS TW 43,000.00 0.00 43,000.00 11,148.51 0.00 31,851.49

            352 - PROF SVS REC 20,550.00 0.00 20,550.00 4,930.85 0.00 15,619.15

            354 - PROF SVS FWD 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00

            355 - PROF SVS HAU 32,775.00 0.00 32,775.00 8,005.00 0.00 24,770.00

            356 - PROF SVS HW 18,900.00 0.00 18,900.00 3,895.00 0.00 15,005.00

            357 - PROF SVS HR 9,450.00 0.00 9,450.00 1,435.00 0.00 8,015.00



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 9

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

150 - TRF STATION CONT'D

            358 - PROF SVS HWO 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 686.50 0.00 2,313.50

            359 - PROF SVS MET 9,450.00 0.00 9,450.00 1,435.00 0.00 8,015.00

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 18,330.00 0.00 18,330.00 0.00 0.00 18,330.00

            450 - EQUIPMENT 18,330.00 0.00 18,330.00 0.00 0.00 18,330.00

        50 - UTILITIES 3,200.00 0.00 3,200.00 915.96 0.00 2,284.04

            570 - FUEL 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 213.14 0.00 986.86

            580 - COMM 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 702.82 0.00 1,297.18

        60 - SUPPLIES 4,250.00 0.00 4,250.00 25.86 0.00 4,224.14

            610 - SUPPLIES 250.00 0.00 250.00 25.86 0.00 224.14

            690 - PPG 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00

        90 - OTHER 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00

            920 - STATE FEE'S 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

            930 - HEALTH & WEL 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

161 - PARKS & REC 11,350.00 0.00 11,350.00 5,179.11 0.00 6,170.89

    21 - RECREATION 9,250.00 0.00 9,250.00 4,381.11 0.00 4,868.89

        40 - REPAIRS & MA 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

            450 - EQUIPMENT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

        90 - OTHER 8,250.00 0.00 8,250.00 4,381.11 0.00 3,868.89

            940 - REC PROGRAMS 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 4,381.11 0.00 3,618.89

            999 - MISC 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

    22 - BUNGANUT 500.00 0.00 500.00 148.00 0.00 352.00

        50 - UTILITIES 500.00 0.00 500.00 148.00 0.00 352.00

            580 - COMM 500.00 0.00 500.00 148.00 0.00 352.00

    23 - KPB 1,600.00 0.00 1,600.00 650.00 0.00 950.00

        50 - UTILITIES 1,600.00 0.00 1,600.00 650.00 0.00 950.00

            580 - COMM 1,600.00 0.00 1,600.00 650.00 0.00 950.00

171 - RES EQUIP 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00

        95 - RESERVES 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00

            970 - TOWN RESERVE 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 0.00

173 - RES BLDG 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00

        95 - RESERVES 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 10

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

173 - RES BLDG CONT'D

            970 - TOWN RESERVE 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00

175 - RES CON SVC 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 0.00

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 0.00

        95 - RESERVES 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 0.00

            970 - TOWN RESERVE 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 0.00

177 - RES MISC 159,400.00 0.00 159,400.00 159,400.00 0.00 0.00

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 159,400.00 0.00 159,400.00 159,400.00 0.00 0.00

        95 - RESERVES 159,400.00 0.00 159,400.00 159,400.00 0.00 0.00

            970 - TOWN RESERVE 159,400.00 0.00 159,400.00 159,400.00 0.00 0.00

179 - RESERVES GMF 105,000.00 0.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00

    91 - GMFR 105,000.00 0.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00

        95 - RESERVES 105,000.00 0.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00

            978 - GMFR RESERVE 105,000.00 0.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00

181 - OUTS GEN AD 136,600.00 0.00 136,600.00 49,854.34 0.00 86,745.66

    11 - TOWN HALL 63,850.00 0.00 63,850.00 37,910.43 0.00 25,939.57

        33 - CONT PROF 63,850.00 0.00 63,850.00 37,910.43 0.00 25,939.57

            310 - PROF SERV 38,850.00 0.00 38,850.00 31,200.00 0.00 7,650.00

            320 - PROF SERV LE 19,000.00 0.00 19,000.00 6,710.43 0.00 12,289.57

            323 - PROF SERV AU 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00

    15 - CEMETERIES 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 410.41 0.00 15,589.59

        37 - CONT OUT 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 410.41 0.00 15,589.59

            399 - CONT SVS OTH 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 410.41 0.00 15,589.59

    17 - PLANNING 46,750.00 0.00 46,750.00 1,533.50 0.00 45,216.50

        33 - CONT PROF 46,750.00 0.00 46,750.00 1,533.50 0.00 45,216.50

            310 - PROF SERV 41,750.00 0.00 41,750.00 0.00 0.00 41,750.00

            320 - PROF SERV LE 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 1,533.50 0.00 3,466.50

    22 - BUNGANUT 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00

        37 - CONT OUT 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00

            399 - CONT SVS OTH 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00

185 - OUTSOURCE OT 209,804.00 0.00 209,804.00 209,803.50 0.00 0.50

    95 - LIBRARY 157,291.00 0.00 157,291.00 157,291.00 0.00 0.00



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 11

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

185 - OUTSOURCE OT CONT'D

        37 - CONT OUT 157,291.00 0.00 157,291.00 157,291.00 0.00 0.00

            399 - CONT SVS OTH 157,291.00 0.00 157,291.00 157,291.00 0.00 0.00

    99 - NOT SPEC 52,513.00 0.00 52,513.00 52,512.50 0.00 0.50

        37 - CONT OUT 47,513.00 0.00 47,513.00 47,512.50 0.00 0.50

            399 - CONT SVS OTH 47,513.00 0.00 47,513.00 47,512.50 0.00 0.50

        90 - OTHER 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00

            999 - MISC 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00

186 - OUTS GMFR 865,661.00 0.00 865,661.00 360,691.85 504,968.59 0.56

    91 - GMFR 865,661.00 0.00 865,661.00 360,691.85 504,968.59 0.56

        37 - CONT OUT 865,661.00 0.00 865,661.00 360,691.85 504,968.59 0.56

            391 - GMFR PERSONN 653,223.00 212,438.00 865,661.00 360,691.85 504,968.59 0.56

            392 - GMFR CONTRAC 212,438.00 -212,438.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

191 - OTHER CIP 29,848.00 0.00 29,848.00 18,178.50 0.00 11,669.50

    11 - TOWN HALL 24,388.00 0.00 24,388.00 18,178.50 0.00 6,209.50

        70 - EQUIPMENT 24,388.00 0.00 24,388.00 18,178.50 0.00 6,209.50

            710 - COMP EQUIP 6,150.00 -2,500.00 3,650.00 0.00 0.00 3,650.00

            730 - OFFICE EQUIP 3,638.00 0.00 3,638.00 3,589.62 0.00 48.38

            790 - OTHER EQUIP 14,600.00 2,500.00 17,100.00 14,588.88 0.00 2,511.12

    21 - RECREATION 2,840.00 0.00 2,840.00 0.00 0.00 2,840.00

        70 - EQUIPMENT 2,840.00 0.00 2,840.00 0.00 0.00 2,840.00

            790 - OTHER EQUIP 2,840.00 0.00 2,840.00 0.00 0.00 2,840.00

    22 - BUNGANUT 2,620.00 0.00 2,620.00 0.00 0.00 2,620.00

        70 - EQUIPMENT 2,620.00 0.00 2,620.00 0.00 0.00 2,620.00

            790 - OTHER EQUIP 2,620.00 0.00 2,620.00 0.00 0.00 2,620.00

195 - RSU # 57 6,345,445.00 0.00 6,345,445.00 2,643,935.35 3,701,509.53 0.12

    92 - RSU # 57 6,345,445.00 0.00 6,345,445.00 2,643,935.35 3,701,509.53 0.12

        90 - OTHER 6,345,445.00 0.00 6,345,445.00 2,643,935.35 3,701,509.53 0.12

            999 - MISC 6,345,445.00 0.00 6,345,445.00 2,643,935.35 3,701,509.53 0.12

197 - COUNTY 432,177.00 0.00 432,177.00 432,177.23 0.00 -0.23

    97 - COUNTY 432,177.00 0.00 432,177.00 432,177.23 0.00 -0.23

        90 - OTHER 432,177.00 0.00 432,177.00 432,177.23 0.00 -0.23



Expense Summary Report

ALL Months

FUND: 111:07 AM

Lyman

Page 12

11/13/2025

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET YTD OUTSTAND UNEXPENDED

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NET NET ENCUM BALANCE

197 - COUNTY CONT'D

            999 - MISC 432,177.00 0.00 432,177.00 432,177.23 0.00 -0.23

199 - OVERLAY 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 11,528.40 0.00 3,471.60

    99 - NOT SPECIFIE 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 11,528.40 0.00 3,471.60

        90 - OTHER 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 11,528.40 0.00 3,471.60

            999 - MISC 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 11,528.40 0.00 3,471.60

Final Totals 11,913,232.00 0.00 11,913,232.00 5,198,391.98 4,534,921.62 2,179,918.40



Lyman Parks & Recreation – Committee 
Quarterly Report 

Paint Night with Sue 
 Is held the first Friday of every month from 6–8 p.m. in the Community Room at the 
Community Library. For $30, participants receive all materials, plus light snacks and 
refreshments. So far, attendees have painted a woodland landscape, Mill Pond, and the Chapel 
at Bunganut Pond. Novembers paint night will be a fall picture of Mill Pond. We have had most 
classes at a max of 12, but we can run them with 5. 

Concerts in the Park – Our Best Year Yet! 
July marked the start of our 4th year of Concerts in the Park and it ended in August - and it 
was our best one so far! 
Performers included Granite Planet, Country Roads, The Dilemma, Dave Gluck, North River 
Music, and Henry Lowery—a mix of country, pop, rock, and today’s hits. Thanks to Moe’s Italian 
Sandwiches, B&D Roadside Grill, and the Goodwins Mills Firefighters Relief 
Association for keeping us fed throughout the summer! We’re already excited to plan 
the 2026 season with returning and new vendors. Having the food trucks added a reason for 
people to come join us for the concert, we believe this is why our numbers of people were so 
much higher.  We had any where from 80-160 people at the concerts this year. Parking was a 
bit of a challenge but seemed to work out just fine, with parking in the field and at town hall. 

ITEM #4: (c.) Parks & Rec Report



Goodwins Mills Octoberfest – October 19th 
This was a great event, and we are already looking forward to next year and what we can add 
to it to make it even better!  Thank you to all the town committees that joined us, this made the 
event extra special.  

This is what we had: 

• Pumpkin Carving/Painting & Scarecrow Making hosted by Parks & Rec
• Food from the Goodwins Mills Firefighters Relief Association
• Bake & Book Sale with the Community Library
• “Meet the People of Lyman” cemetery history walk with the Lyman Historical Society

& Cemetery Association
• Craft/Vendor Fair at the baseball field
• Non-Profit groups joined us
• Tables from Town committees

Grants:   Picnic Tables have been put together and are out at Bunganut. The Ramps have also 
been finished. 

Looking Ahead 



Letters to Santa – The box will be inside the library for children to write letters to Santa and 
they will get a reply.  Date to be announced. 

Christmas Tree Lighting – December 6th - Join us for cocoa, cookies, caroling, and a visit from 
Santa on the fire truck! 

Community Ice Rink – This will be set up after the tree lighting (date to be announced). We 

will need many volunteers to run this; we will be putting out a request for help.  

the Chapel at Bunganut Pond. Follow the Lyman Parks and Recreation Facebook page to see 
what the next month’s theme will be! 



Town Manager’s Updates 

November 17th, 2025 

Building and Grounds Improvements 

This fall, the Town welcomed the addition of a new department that will play a key role in 

maintaining and preserving our community’s assets. On September 8th, we hired a Director of 

Facilities and Recreational Services, a new position for the Town of Lyman. This department is 

responsible for overseeing buildings and grounds maintenance, facility improvements, and 

assisting with community services such as Bunganut rentals and field use requests. 

Since beginning employment, the Director has made significant progress addressing a long 

list of maintenance needs across Town facilities. Notable accomplishments include repairing 

the front entrance door at Town Hall, replacing all exterior lightbulbs in the parking lot to 

restore lighting, cutting back invasive tree growth around municipal buildings, replacing and 

repairing broken floor tiles, and performing stonework and trim painting at the Bunganut 

Chapel. Additional efforts have included light pruning along trails, opening an additional 

access route for improved handicap accessibility at Bunganut, salvaging and repairing picnic 

tables, as well as assisting in the assembly of new picnic tables, and completing landscaping 

and garden cleanup at Kennebunk Pond Beach. The Director also removed several dead trees 

in the Town Hall parking lot that posed a safety concern. 

These efforts have provided immediate and visible improvements to our facilities and 

grounds. Having this department in place has already proven highly beneficial by reducing 

the need to outsource small projects and routine maintenance, allowing for quicker response 

times and better oversight of Town assets. 

Looking ahead, the Director is working closely with Administration to assess all municipal 

buildings, prioritize needed repairs, and develop a long-term maintenance and capital 

improvement plan. This proactive approach will help extend the life of our facilities, ensure 

safety and accessibility, and preserve the value of Town-owned properties for years to come. 

ITEM #4: (d.) Town Manager Report



Ordinance Audit Project with SMPDC 

The Town of Lyman has been selected to participate in a Local Ordinance Audit being 

conducted by the Southern Maine Planning & Development Commission (SMPDC) through a 

grant funded by the Maine Department of Community and Economic Development’s Housing 

Opportunity Program. This project is being offered at no cost to the Town and provides a 

valuable opportunity to evaluate the usability and effectiveness of our current zoning and 

land use ordinances. 

Through this initiative, SMPDC will conduct a review of the Town’s Zoning, Subdivision, and 

Site Plan Review Ordinances. The audit will examine areas such as overall ordinance usability, 

zoning standards and dimensional requirements, performance standards, the site plan and 

subdivision processes, and any existing bonuses or incentives within the ordinances. In 

addition, SMPDC will assess the overall consistency of the Town’s regulations as well as their 

adherence to local programs, state statutes, and recent legislative updates. 

The project will result in a comprehensive report summarizing SMPDC’s findings and 

recommendations, identifying areas where improvements could make the Town’s ordinances 

clearer, more consistent, and better aligned with long-term community goals. The program is 

designed to include one participating representative from each municipality to serve as the 

Town’s point of contact throughout the review process. For Lyman, the Code Enforcement 

Officer will work closely with SMPDC to provide additional local insight as needed. 

Community Resilience Partnership 

The Town of Lyman has been invited to participate in the Community Resilience Partnership, a 

statewide initiative through the Governor’s Office of Policy Innovation and the Future. The 

program provides both technical and financial assistance to municipal governments to help 

communities reduce carbon emissions and strengthen resilience against the growing impacts 

of climate change. Through access to grants and professional guidance, participating 

communities can pursue projects that address clean energy, energy efficiency, and climate 

adaptation—such as improving stormwater systems, protecting infrastructure, and preparing 

for flooding or other extreme weather events. 

Enrollment in the program is required before a municipality becomes eligible for funding 

opportunities. As part of this process, I am currently completing a self-assessment, which is 

scheduled to conclude the week of November 17th. This assessment identifies local 

vulnerabilities to climate change and helps outline the Town’s priorities for future action. 

Input is also being gathered from the Comprehensive Plan Committee, which is developing a 

climate resiliency chapter for the Comprehensive Plan, as well as from the Deputy Emergency 



Management Agent, who is assisting in identifying the Town’s key challenges and barriers 

related to natural disasters and emergency preparedness. 

Once the Town completes its self-assessment and formally enrolls in the partnership, Lyman 

will gain access to a network of grant programs, technical assistance, and regional 

coordination opportunities designed to support community-driven climate and energy 

projects. Enrollment in this program will position the Town to pursue meaningful initiatives 

that protect infrastructure, enhance energy efficiency, and ensure long-term resilience for the 

community and its residents. 

Property Equalization Project 

RSC Assessment Services is continuing work on the Town’s Property Equalization Project, with 

a primary focus on updating the assessing cost tables. Because taxes have already been 

committed for the current year, timing these updates after commitment ensures that any 

changes will apply to assessed values only in the next cycle, not retroactively. Updating the 

cost tables helps keep assessments aligned with current market conditions and supports a fair 

distribution of the tax burden across all property types. Regular recalibration is essential as 

values shift over time due to inflation, new construction, renovations, and market demand. 

The project remains on schedule and is expected to meet, if not finish ahead of, the April 1, 

2026 deadline. As part of this effort, RSC is also assisting with permit catch-up work to review 

recent property changes so that improvements and alterations are accurately reflected in 

assessments. Over the years, Lyman’s valuation ratio has declined, which has reduced the 

benefit of certain property tax exemptions; by modernizing the cost tables, the Town 

anticipates improving the ratio and thereby restoring a greater share of those exemptions for 

eligible taxpayers. 

While equalization projects can sometimes lead to individual assessment changes—up or 

down—the aim of this work is not to raise revenue but to improve accuracy and equity. 

Bringing assessments in line with real market conditions helps ensure all taxpayers are treated 

fairly and strengthens the integrity of the Town’s tax base moving forward. 

Updated Dump Stickers 

The Town will soon be rolling out updated dump stickers with a small but meaningful 

improvement. The new design will allow residents to use the same sticker for both the 

Transfer Station and Bunganut Park, serving as verification for their free resident park pass. 

This update will simplify the process for residents by eliminating the need for separate proof 

of residency when visiting the park and will also help streamline park pass distribution. The 

updated stickers are expected to be available sometime in December, giving residents plenty 



of time to obtain them before the new season begins. This combined system will provide 

added convenience for residents while helping Town staff more efficiently manage both the 

Transfer Station and Bunganut Park programs. 

Tax-Acquired Property Law Updates 

Recent changes to Maine’s laws governing tax-acquired property have introduced new 

procedures that will directly affect how municipalities manage, retain, and sell such 

properties. As these law are still being clarified, new information has become available that 

offers greater insight into how the updated requirements apply to Lyman—particularly in 

relation to the Town’s ongoing Land Study 

Under the revised framework, municipalities must now follow more stringent requirements to 

verify ownership and maintain documentation when acquiring properties through the tax lien 

process. For older parcels where the Town’s ownership records are incomplete or unclear, it is 

advised that the Town conduct a thorough review of property title to confirm how and when 

ownership was obtained. Earlier guidance indicated that the new rules would apply only to 

parcels acquired after 2023; however, more recent clarification confirms that these provisions 

extend to all tax-acquired properties, regardless of when the Town originally obtained them. 

The updated statutes also change how municipalities can utilize or dispose of tax-acquired 

property. While the Town may still sell tax-acquired parcels, new requirements stipulate that 

the sale must be conducted through a licensed real estate broker or agent, ensuring that the 

process aligns with fair market practices and transparency standards. However, the Town may 

no longer retain the sale proceeds. Any excess funds after taxes, costs, and fees are satisfied 

must be distributed according to statute, and if former owners cannot be located, the 

remaining proceeds must be transferred to the State’s Unclaimed Property Fund. 

If the Town wishes to retain a tax acquired property for municipal use, such as public facilities 

or parks, a professional appraisal must first be completed by a licensed appraiser unaffiliated 

with the Town. Clear title must also be established before any municipal development can 

proceed. After completing these steps, the Town may purchase the property at its appraised 

market value, less any excess proceeds remaining after taxes, costs, and fees are paid. 

For Lyman, these legislative changes will have a notable effect on the Land Study Project, 

which includes identifying potential uses for Town-owned parcels and reviewing long-held 

tax-acquired lands. While the Town will still have some flexibility in determining the future of 

these properties, the new legal requirements mean that any future sales or reservations for 

specific municipal uses will involve additional procedural steps and oversight. In light of these 

developments, I recommend continuing the Land Study process to finalize the Town’s review, 

outline clear next steps, and bring the project to a thoughtful conclusion. 



November 2025 State Referendum Election 

The Maine State Referendum Election was held on November 4, 2025. The Town of Lyman 

saw a strong voter turnout, with 1,590 ballots cast out of a total of 3,722 registered voters. 

During the election period, 24 new voters registered to participate. Election results for Lyman 

are posted on the Town’s website for public viewing. For local reporting, Question 1 received 

733 votes in favor and 857 opposed, with no blank ballots cast. Question 2 received 865 votes 

in favor, 722 opposed, and 3 blank ballots. The election process ran very smoothly thanks to 

the diligent work of our Town Clerk, Deputy Town Clerks, and the many Election Workers who 

helped to ensure a fair and efficient process. Additional information about the statewide 

results can be found on the State’s official website at Maine.gov. 

Municipal Audit Update 

Field work for the annual Municipal Audit was completed on November 6th, with the Town’s 

auditor conducting a thorough on-site review at Town Hall. The audit process went smoothly, 

and no issues or comments were noted during the field work portion. This marks another 

successful year of financial review and demonstrates the Town’s continued commitment to 

transparency and sound fiscal management. The auditors are now in the process of finalizing 

their report, and the FY2025 Municipal Audit Report is expected to be completed and 

presented within the next month.  

SMPDC Planning and Legislative Resources 

The Southern Maine Planning and Development Commission (SMPDC) has recently expanded 

its website to include a variety of new resources such as webinars, fact sheets, and legislative 

tracking tools focused on community planning, housing, and land use law updates. Following 

the adjournment of the 132nd Legislature, several new statutes were enacted that directly 

affect local zoning and housing development standards, including those related to housing 

density, parking requirements, residential uses in commercial districts, and affordable housing 

initiatives. SMPDC has hosted one of its first webinars reviewing these legislative changes and 

intends to continue posting updates and recorded sessions on its website as additional 

information and rulemaking guidance become available. 

As Lyman continues to move forward with revisions to the Comprehensive Plan and, 

eventually, updates to its ordinances, I have been sharing this information with the Code 

Enforcement Officer and committee chairs to invite and encourage them to explore these 

resources. The materials, including legislative updates and workshop recordings, can be 

accessed on SMPDC’s website at https://smpdc.org/leg. While it may not provide every 

https://www.maine.gov/
https://smpdc.org/leg


resource needed for planning and ordinance review, it serves as a valuable tool to stay 

informed and proactive as the Town adapts to these evolving state-level changes.  

Upcoming Office Closures and Adjusted Hours 

As we move into the holiday season, there will be several changes to the Town Office 

schedule to accommodate holiday observances. Please note the following schedule changes 

for the Town Office and Transfer Station: 

November 26, 2025, Wednesday - Town Office will be open from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 

Instead of the normal 12:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. hours. 

November 27, 2025, Thursday - (Thanksgiving Day) 

Town Office and the Transfer Station will be closed. 

November 28, 2025, Friday - (Day After Thanksgiving) 

Town Office will be closed. 

December 24, 2025, Wednesday - (Christmas Eve)  

Town Office will be open from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

December 25, 2025, Thursday - (Christmas Day)  

Town Office and the Transfer Station will be closed. 

December 31, 2025, Wednesday - (New Years Eve)  

Town Office will be open from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

January 1, 2026, Thursday - (New Year’s Day)  

Town Office and the Transfer Station will be closed. 

This year, both Christmas Day and New Year’s Day fall on a Thursday. As a result, staffing will 

be limited on the following Fridays, and we’re currently reviewing the possibility of additional 

closures on December 26th and January 2nd to accommodate the holiday schedule. 

Online Dog Licensing 

We are currently in the process of enrolling the Town in the State of Maine’s Online Dog 

Licensing Program, which will provide residents with a convenient new way to register their 

dogs from home. Once the system is active, residents will be able to complete new 

registrations or renewals online at any time, and the dog tags will be mailed directly to their 

home. The Town will continue to receive its agent fees from online transactions, ensuring a 

seamless process for both residents and staff. 



Under Maine law, all dogs must be licensed in the town where they reside once they reach six 

months of age, or within 10 days of adoption if the dog is newly acquired. The online system 

will allow for both new and renewal licenses, with a cost of $8.75 for altered (spayed or 

neutered) dogs and $13.75 for unaltered dogs. These fees include a $1.00 online transaction 

fee and a $1.75 shipping and handling fee for mailing tags directly to the owner. 

To register online, residents will need a copy of their dog’s current rabies vaccination 

certificate for upload (PDF, Word, or JPEG), as well as their dog’s microchip number and 

microchip issuer (such as Home Again, 24PetWatch, or Avid) to participate in the State’s free 

microchip registration program that is included with licensing. 

Once implemented, information will be posted for residents as we enroll into this program. 



ITEM #4: (e.) Excise Report





ITEM #4: (f.) ECO ME Report









































October 19, 2025 

TO: Town Manager and Town Treasurer 

FROM: Lyman Cemetery Committee 

RE: 3 quotes needed for any projects over $5000 

In order for us to have funds released for tree cutting in 3 Ancient Cemeteries, we were to obtain 3 

quotes from different tree companies.  Below is that list.  

Vendor  Date Contacted Details 

Tripp Tree Company Aug 8th, 2025 $2800, $5800, $3200 were the quotes for all 3 

Joe Goff Aug 9th, 2025 took him and he planned to send us quotes for all 
three. 

Follow up texts/phone calls: 8/23, 8/28, 9/10, 9/15 – 
No replies 

Colonial Tree in Buxton Oct 8th, 2025 Emailed – no reply 

Follow up email: Oct 10th, 2025 – No reply 

Pork Chop Tree Svcs Sept 19th, 2025 Replied they do not do that type of job. 

Budgeted Amount for FY2026 

Cemetery Tree Removal - $12,000 

ITEM #5: (a.) Cemetery Committee Request









NOTICE OF DETERMINATION OF  

PRESUMPTION OF ABANDONMENT 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, on October 20, 2025, the undersigned 

Municipal Officers of the TOWN OF LYMAN met in public session and after public 

hearing and deliberation determined that the below-described portion of OLD POST 

ROAD, also known as Doughty Road, also known as Nadeau Road is presumed 

abandoned pursuant to 23 M.R.S.A. § 3028-A.  The abandoned section of road is more 

particularly described as follows: 

That section of Old Post Road, Town of Lyman, County of York and State of 

Maine, beginning at the intersection of Alewive Road (sometimes called 

Route 35) and running a distance of approximately 0.43 miles in a generally 

southwesterly direction ending at the intersection of Day Road.  

In making this determination, the Municipal Officers received evidence that Old Post 

Road was a four-rod County Road that was established in 1822 and was further described 

in the York County Registry of Deeds in Book 15, Page 343. The Municipal officers 

determined that the Town of Lyman has not kept that section of Old Post Road beginning 

at the intersection of Alewive Road (sometimes called Route 35) and ending at the 

intersection of Day Road passable for the use of motor vehicles at Town expense for a 

period of at least thirty years prior to its public hearing and vote. 

The Municipal Officers also voted to retain a public easement on the abandoned portion 

of Old Post Road for passage by foot, motor vehicles and utilities to the full extent 

provided by Maine law.  

A list of the affected property owners is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Dated at Lyman, Maine, this ___ day of _______________, 2025. 

TOWN OF LYMAN 

By its Selectboard: 

_______________________ 

Victoria Gavel, Chair 

COPY
ITEM #5: (b.) Notice of Determination of Abandonment Old Post Road



________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

________________________ 

Amber Sweatt 

________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

________________________ 

David Alves 

CERTIFICATION BY TOWN CLERK 

I, Susan Bellarose, Town Clerk for the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby attest 

that the certificate of discontinuance by abandonment was duly voted and adopted by the 

Lyman Select Board on October 20, 2025, with all appeal periods having expired.  

________________________ 

Susan Bellarose, Clerk 

STATE OF MAINE 

COUNTY OF YORK  November_______________, 2025 

Personally appeared the above named Susan Bellarose in her capacity as Town Clerk 

of the Town of Lyman and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be her free act and 

deed in said capacity. 

Before me, 

_________________________________ 

Notary Public  

Printed Name:_____________________ 

My commission expires:_____________ COPY



EXHIBIT A- PROPERTY OWNERS 

Parcel Acct: 823, Map#8/ Lot#28 

The Morissette Farm, LLC 

308 Day Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 838, Map#8/ Lot#28-E 

Vanasse, Ryan 

& Kurstyn Vanasse 

61 Old Post Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 837, Map#8/ Lot#28-D 

Lesso, Christine 

& Brandon Lestage 

43 Old Post Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 830, Map#8/ Lot#28-5 

Staples, Bradley & Abigail 

37 Old Post Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 836, Map#8/ Lot#28-C 

Trustees of the Frances F Camire Liv Trust, Tolliver, Therese L & Stull, Claire D 

23 Old Post Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

COPY



Parcel Acct: 835, Map#8/ Lot#28-B 

Dion, Kristen 

& Ruth Manson 

9 Old Post Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 833, Map#8/ Lot#28-8 

Walter, Alexander 

181 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 865, Map#8/ Lot#38 

Riche, Normand 

213 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 862, Map#8/ Lot#37 

St Laurent, Scott 

& Tracey Laurent 

229 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 863, Map#8/ Lot#37-1 

Smith, Betsy 

241 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 COPY



Parcel Acct: 864, Map#8/ Lot#37-2 

Nowicki, Katherine 

247 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 861, Map#8/ Lot#36 

Cilley, Lucila 

255 Alewive Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Parcel Acct: 841, Map#8/ Lot#31 

Lavigne, Daniel 

& Diane Cyr 

0 Day Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

COPY



ITEM #5: (d.) Special Amusement Permit - Funky Bow







TOWN OF LYMAN 

SPECIAL AMUSEMENT ORDINANCE 

 

1. TITLE 

This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the Special Amusement Ordinance of the Town of Lyman, 

Maine. 

2.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to control the issuance of special permits for music, dancing or entertainment 

in facilities licensed by the State of Maine to sell liquor and is adopted pursuant to Title 28-A M.R.S.A. Section 

1054. 

3. DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

A) Compliance Report:  The source document prepared by the inspection officer after receiving a complaint 

detailing an incident. The report when duly signed by the officer shall become a matter of record.  The report 

shall remain on file until the cessation of the use for which the special amusement permit was issued, regardless 

of any change in ownership or control of the use.  Each complaint shall be investigated by the responding 

officer and attested to as to the validity of said complaint. 

B) Entertainment:  For the purpose of this Ordinance “entertainment” shall include any amusement, 

performance, exhibition or diversion for patrons or customers of the licensed premises whether provided by 

professional entertainers or by full-time or part-time employees of the licensed premises whose incidental duties 

include activities with an entertainment value coincident to any music, dancing or live acts.  

C) Inspection Officer:  The Law or Code Enforcement Officer acting on behalf of the Town to ensure proper 

enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance.  

D)  Licensee:  For the purpose of this Section, “licensee” shall include the holder of a license issued under Title 

28-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, or any person, individual, partnership, firm, association, corporation or 

other legal entity, or any agent, or employee of any such licensee acting on behalf of such licensee. 

4. PERMIT REQUIRED 

No licensee for the sale of liquor to be consumed on the licensed premises shall permit on the licensed premises, 

any music, except radio or other mechanical device, any dancing or entertainment of any sort unless the licensee 

shall have first obtained from the Town a Special Amusement Permit approved by a majority of the Board of 

Selectmen. 

Application(s) for all Special Amusement Permits shall be obtained from the Town Clerk.  Applications for all 

Special Amusement Permits shall be made in writing to the Board of Selectmen and shall state:  

The name of the applicant. 

Applicant’s residential address. 

Name of the business to be conducted.  

Business address. 

Nature of the business. 

Location address to be used.  



All places of residence of the applicant during the past five years> 

Hours during which the business shall be in operation> 

Whether the applicant has ever had a license to conduct business therein described either  

denied or revoked and, if so, the applicant shall describe those circumstances specifically. 

Any additional information as may be needed by the Board of Selectmen in issuing the permit 

including but not limited to,  a copy of the applicant’s liquor license and expiration date> 

No permit shall be issued for any thing, or act, or premises, if the premise or building to be used for such 

purpose do not fully comply with this Ordinance, or any other applicable ordinances, articles, by-laws or rules 

and regulations of the Town and the laws of the State of Maine. 

The fee for a Special Amusement Permit shall be $50 (plus advertising costs). 

 

The Board of Selectmen shall, prior to granting a permit and after reasonable notice to the public and the 

applicant, hold a public hearing within thirty (30) days of the date when the request was received, at which the 

testimony of the applicant and that of any interested members of the public shall be taken. 

A permit shall be valid only for the licensee year of the applicant’s existing liquor license.  

Any licensee requesting a Special Amusement Permit from the Board of Selectmen shall be notified in writing 

of the Board’s decision no later than sixty (60) days from the date the request was received.  In the event that a 

licensee is denied a permit, the licensee shall be provided with the reasons for denial in writing.  The licensee 

may not reapply for a permit until thirty (30) days after an application for a permit has been denied.  Any 

licensee who has requested a permit and has been denied may, within thirty (30) days of the denial, appeal the 

decision to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

5. INSPECTIONS 

Whenever inspections of the premises used for or in connection with the operation of a licensed business which 

has obtained a Special Amusement Permit are provided for or required by Ordinance or State law, it shall be the 

duty of the licensee, or the person in charge of the premises to be inspected, to admit any officer, official or 

employee of the Town authorized to make inspection at any reasonable time that admission is required.   

The Board of Selectmen shall require an initial inspection of the premises and licensee for overall ability to 

comply with the provisions of this Ordinance.  Thereafter, at least one inspection annually shall take place.  The 

Inspection Officer shall record the findings by completing a Compliance Report.  

In addition to any other penalty which may be provided, the Board of Selectmen may revoke the Special 

Amusement Permit of any licensee in the Town who refuses to permit any such officer, official or authorized 

employee of the Town to make an inspection, or who interferes with such officer, official or employee while in 

performance of his duties; provided, that no Special Amusement Permit shall be revoked unless written demand 

for the inspection is made upon the licensee or person in charge of the premises, at the time the inspection is 

sought. 

6.  SUSPENSTION OR REVOCATION OFA PERMIT 

The Board of Selectmen may, after a public hearing preceded by public notice to interested parties, suspend or 

revoke any Special Amusement Permits which have been issued under this Ordinance on the grounds that the 

music, dancing or entertainment so permitted constitutes a nuisance as set forth in Section 7 of this Ordinance 

or violates this or any other Town ordinances, articles, by-laws or rules and regulations.  



Any licensee whose permit has been revoked or suspended, may within thirty (30) days of the suspension or 

revocation, appeal the decision to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

7.  NUISANCE 

The  licensee or his authorized representative shall not permit the use of the premises to result in any continued, 

excessive, or unreasonably loud noise, or any noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the 

comfort, repose, health or safety of individuals; or which results in disturbing the peace and tranquility of the 

neighborhood.  The sound levels must comply with the provisions Zoning Ordinance of the Town regulating the 

maximum permissible sound pressure levels produced by any activity on a lot.   

8.  ADMISSION 

A licensed hotel, Class A restaurant, Class A tavern or restaurant malt liquor licensee who has been issued a 

Special Amusement Permit may charge admission in designated areas approved by the Special Amusement 

Permit.  

9.  SEPARABILITY 

The invalidity of any provision of this Ordinance shall not invalidate any other part.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Outreach to Local Assistance Organizations 

KerryJo has expressed interest in reaching out to local organizations that provide food, 
clothing, and similar assistance to residents. Her goal is to explore whether the Town Hall 
could serve as a potential drop-off location for donated items, with participating 
organizations coordinating pick-ups, as well as to inquire about opportunities for 
collaborating on donation drives. This discussion will help determine whether the Board 
wishes to consider this type of outreach and what parameters or expectations may be 
appropriate. 

ITEM #5: (e.) Discussion of Outreach to Local Organizations 



Potential Public Seminar on Income Tax Basics 

KerryJo is also interested in contacting certified accountants to identify someone who may 
be willing to offer a public seminar at Town Hall focused on income taxes, practical tips, 
and general guidance for residents. The purpose of this discussion is to determine whether 
the Board would like to pursue hosting such an educational session and to consider any 
logistical or procedural considerations before outreach continues. 

ITEM #5: (f) Discussion of Public Seminar on Income Taxes Basics



Proposal to review Arundel Zoning Ordinance 

Vickie, 

For New Business – discussion of a proposal for the Select Board, the Comprehensive Plan 
Committee, the Ordinance Review Committee, the Planning Board and the Code 
Enforcement Officer to review the Zoning Ordinance of Arundel that was prepared by the 
SMPDC. The purpose would be to provide initial input to SMPDC in the event that it is 
commissioned by the Town of Lyman to revise its Zoning Ordinance. 

It could be reduced to: 

For New Business – discussion of a proposal to review the Zoning Ordinance of Arundel 

Thanks! 

Joe 

ITEM #5: (g.) Discussion Proposal to review Arundel Zoning Ordinances



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday October 20th, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/  

Selectboard members present: Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, David Alves, Joseph Wagner, KerryJo Sampson 
Selectboard members absent:  

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Public Hearing – Regarding the formal abandonment of Old Post Road.

The Select Board held a public hearing tonight to receive information and public comment regarding
the discontinuance of Old Post Road by abandonment in accordance with Title 23 M.R.S. §3028-A.
Town Counsel was present to provide legal guidance on the process.

Attorney Rick Hull, representing several residents of Old Post Road, explained that the property
owners had petitioned the Town to formally declare the road abandoned under the statutory
abandonment process. The intent is for the abutting property owners to assume responsibility for
maintenance and potentially form a private road association. Mr. Hull noted that the road has not
been publicly maintained for decades and that an official declaration would clarify that the Town
holds no future maintenance obligations.

Town Counsel, Attorney Brad Morin, outlined the procedural steps followed: Collection of evidence
and Town records confirming the absence of maintenance for at least 30 years; Notification to
affected property owners and scheduling of the public hearing with proper statutory notice;
Discussion and eventual Board determination whether to (1) declare the road abandoned and (2)
decide whether to retain a public easement for continued public access.

Mr. Morren explained that retaining a public easement would allow continued public passage, while
the Town would no longer be responsible for maintenance. Without such an easement, public
access rights would cease.

Residents spoke in support of the abandonment, confirming the lack of Town maintenance and
expressing preference that a public easement be retained to ensure access for all property owners
and emergency services. Concerns regarding access to side roads, private driveways, and a nearby
cemetery were addressed, with clarification that retaining the public easement would preserve
access for all.

Questions were also raised regarding proper recording of the abandonment. Counsel confirmed
that, following the Board’s vote and appeal period, a certificate of discontinuance would be filed
with both the York County Registry of Deeds and the Maine Department of Transportation.

KerryJo Sampson – Motioned ITEM #3 (a.) out of order
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion, Motion passes: 5-0-0

KerryJo Sampson – Motions to declare abandonment of Old Post Road beginning at the
intersections of Alewive Road and running a distance of approximately 0.43 miles in a generally
southwesterly direction to the intersection of is it Day Road.
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

KerryJo Sampson – Motions to declare to keep the public easement for the abandoned portion of
Old Post Road for all purposes allowed by Maine law, travel by foot, motor vehicle, and utilities.
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

DRAFT
ITEM #6: (a.) Minutes 10-20-25

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday October 20th, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any – Brad Morin & Tony Vigue, discussion regarding franchise

agreement revisions.
The Board received an update from Consultant Tony Vigue and Town Counsel Brad Morin regarding
the ongoing renewal of the Town’s cable Franchise Agreement with Charter/Spectrum. Mr. Vigue
reviewed the history of the renewal process, noting delays due to Charter’s limited cooperation, the
COVID-19 pandemic, and recent legislative changes. He highlighted two new state law changes
which strengthen municipal authority and ensure fair treatment of community access television
channels. Mr. Vigue recommended that Attorney Morin work with him to merge the Town’s
previously negotiated franchise draft with the new Maine Model Franchise Agreement,
incorporating beneficial updates while retaining terms already agreed to by Charter.

Further discussion included: The status of current and prior drafts (last revised in March 2024);
Charter’s refusal to upgrade transmission equipment for high-definition (HD) broadcast and the
ongoing involvement of the Attorney General’s Office and Greater Portland Council of Governments
to address the issue; The non-exclusive nature of cable franchises and potential for alternative
service providers, such as fiber or streaming companies, though many do not require a franchise
agreement under current law; and clarification that the proposed Charter–Cox merger would not
directly impact the Town’s franchise; The cable ordinance, last revision drafted in 2024, which may
only require minor updates to remain consistent with state law.

Mr. Vigue and Attorney Morin will review the most recent franchise draft, compare it with the new
model, and present a red-lined version for Select Board review. Once finalized, the updated
agreement will be sent to Charter for consideration.

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1 M.R.S.A § 405(6)(E) – Discussion regarding consultations with legal counsel 
Amber Swett – Motions to go into executive session per M.R.S.A §405(6)(E) – Discussion regarding consultations with 
legal counsel.  
KerryJo Sampson – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

Victoria Gavel – Motions to come out of executive session.  
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-2 (Victoria Gavel, Joseph Wagner, David Alves in favor; 
KerryJo Sampson, Amber Swett abstain, not present) 

1 M.R.S.A § 405(6)(A) – Discussion regarding personnel matters 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to go into executive session per M.R.S.A §405(6)(A) – Discussion regarding personnel matters 
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 3-0-2 (Victoria Gavel, Joseph Wagner, David Alves in favor; KerryJo 
Sampson, Amber Swett abstain, not present) 

Victoria Gavel – Motions to come out of executive session. 
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday October 20th, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda,
please contact the Town Manager.
Michelle Feliccitti - Provides comments regarding concerns about adherence to the Town Charter,
Municipal Code of Ethics, and the Select Board’s Code of Conduct. These documents are essential to
maintain public trust, fairness, and accountability in local government. When officials have acted
outside of established procedures by directing staff, organizing committees without going through
proper channels, and discussing town business outside of public meetings, it constitutes a
procedural breach as well as ethical violations. Individual board members hold no authority outside
of official board meetings and public deliberations must occur transparently. All officials are to
uphold the standards of respect, integrity, and lawful governance outlined in the Charter and
related policies. Charter Section 3.7.2, which outlines circumstances under which a Select Board
member shall forfeit office for intentional violations of the Charter.

b. Mail       • York County Sheriff Bulletin     •York County Sheriff Report   •ME Revenue Services Letter
Reviewed in packet. 

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
b. Solar On Earth – Solar Subscription Presentation / Tabled from last Meeting.

During discussion, Board members shared differing perspectives: Some members expressed
skepticism about the reliability and long-term performance of third-party solar subscription
programs, citing mixed feedback from other municipalities and concerns about the difficulty of
canceling agreements. Amber Swett had reached out to the Town of Waterboro and was informed
they were not part of a solar subscription as was indicated in the presentation from Solar on Earth.
Other Towns Amber contacted, indicated that when they signed up, it was a three year wait until
they were officially subscribed to a farm, and the subscription did not include streetlights. Amber’s
other concern was that if subscribed, then it may be difficult or timely to get off the plan, and the
percentage of savings is not a guaranteed consistent amount. Joe Wagner suggested subscribing on
an interim basis until the Town chooses to apply other solar methods, such as installation of solar
panels to the Town Hall expansion.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to table the item indefinitely.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Old Post Road – Review/Approve formal abandonment
Motioned out of order. See above under ITEM #1

d. Quarterly Newsletter update – review of email, social media & communications analytics
Updates on the quarterly newsletter: Strong engagement on social media platforms via Mailchimp
and Facebook, and printed copies were distributed. The newsletter received positive feedback from
residents, including new community members, highlighting its value in keeping the public informed.
Mailchimp data indicated higher-than-usual link clicks and engagement, suggesting the newsletter
successfully reached a significant portion of subscribers. The Board discussed the benefits of
continuing the newsletter, with members expressing willingness to support future editions,
including the upcoming January issue. The next newsletter edition is expected to be prepared for
publication around mid-December.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday October 20th, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief

Victoria Gavel – GMFR Open House was successful and had a good turnout. The new roof repairs
are completed. Next meeting will be on November 6th, 2025 at 5:15 at the Fire Department.

b. Treasurer – Expense Report – Reviewed in agenda packet.
c. Discussion – Committee Quarterly Reports

The Board discussed the status of committee quarterly reports, noting that while some committees
had submitted their reports, several had not, even when no significant activity occurred. It was
noted that committees are expected to hold meetings at town facilities, and failure to report or
meet may warrant reconsideration of the committee’s continuation. It was suggested, Board liaisons
can follow up with their respective committees to ensure reports are received, even if they simply
indicate no recent activity.

ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Zoning Board of Appeals – Application for re-appointment

David Alves – Motions to appoint Steve Walker to the Zoning Board of Appeals (Alternate
Position)
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion regarding a public inquiry at the October 6th meeting and whether the Board is
interested in exploring the potential purchase of a local community building on Church Street
The Board revisited a public inquiry from the October 6th meeting regarding the potential purchase
of a local community building on Church Street. Members expressed interest in the concept but
noted concerns about timing, budget constraints, and the costs associated with bringing an older
building up to code. While some felt the town should explore opportunities to acquire local
properties when available, others emphasized that ongoing projects, including the town hall
expansion, upgrades at Bunganut Park, and potential ball field improvements, make immediate
acquisition challenging. The discussion included the possibility of presenting the purchase to the
voters through a special town meeting or election, though the timeline for such a process could
range from one to three months. Board members agreed that while the property has potential as a
community center, further consideration, funding options, and community input would be
necessary before moving forward.

ITEM #6 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 10/06/2025

David Alves – Motions to approve. KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motions passes: 5-0-0
Discussion adding changes to ITEM #1 changing “Haunted Tours” to Historical Tours”

ITEM #7 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #17 in the amount of $34,815.24

Joseph Wagner – Motions to approve: KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #18 (FY2026) in the amount of $195,960.63

Joseph Wagner – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motions passes: 5-0-0

ADJOURN 
David Alves – Motions to adjourn. KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday October 20th, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

__________________________________________ 
Victoria Gavel 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 5 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated October 20th, 2025 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday November 3rd, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 2 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/  

Selectboard members present: Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, David Alves, Joseph Wagner, KerryJo Sampson 
Selectboard members absent:  

ITEM #1 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda,
please contact the Town Manager.
Joseph Wagner - Provided an overview of his and Karen Kaine’s volunteer work on grant

applications for the Town of Lyman following Select Board approval in October 2024. He noted that

grant applications had been prepared and then reviewed by the Town Manager prior to submission.

Other discussions later took place regarding potential future grant opportunities related to town

trails. Mr. Wagner expressed concern regarding multiple Freedom of Access Act (FOAA) requests

directed at him and others involved, stating that informal discussions among committee members

about potential projects should not be considered official meetings requiring public notice. He

requested that the Select Board seek legal clarification on what constitutes a “meeting” under state

law. Mr. Wagner further stated that FOAA should promote transparency and not be used by public

officials against one another.

ITEM #2 NEW BUSINESS 
a. RFP – Sale of Generator and Transfer Switch (from the recent upgrades to a new generator)

Discussion – The Board agreed to place the item out to bid for sale, with bids to be opened on
November 17, 2025. Bid specifications will require payment and removal of the item within fourteen
days of award.
David Alves – Motions to approve. KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. RFP – Property Assessment Equalization Project, Review/Approve $25,000 bid for permit catchup
Discussion – The bid for the cost table updates was awarded; however, the portion of the bid
related to permit catch-up work was not awarded pending Town Meeting approval. The Board
should take action to award that portion before the permit backlog can be addressed. At Town
Meeting, it was noted that the intent is to complete the backlog of work and subsequently consider
staffing support to maintain timely processing going forward.
David Alves – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Review/Approve consolidated positions of Admin CEO & Property Records Assistant
Joseph Wagner – Motions to table the item until members have an opportunity to review the
March 25, 2025 workshop recording where the proposal was previously discussed to provide
additional context.
The motion did not receive a second and therefore failed.
Discussion – Both part-time positions are currently vacant. Both Departments (CEO and Assessor)
support consolidating the positions, and sufficient funds are available within the current budget to
support a full-time role with benefits. This concept was initially discussed during budget workshops,
and the necessary funding was included in the budget. Later, during the Joint Budget Meeting, the
Board agreed to present the position as a separate warrant article. With both positions vacant,

DRAFT
ITEM #6: (b.) Minutes 11-3-25

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday November 3rd, 2025– Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 2 

there is no employee impact, and moving forward would help prevent departments from remaining 
understaffed for an extended period. 
David Alves – Motions to consolidate the positions as recommended by the Town Manager.  
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion.  
Motion passes: 4-1-0 (Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, KerryJo Sampson, David Alves in favor; Joesph 
Wagner opposed). 

ITEM #3 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #19 in the amount of $36,735.41

KerryJo Sampson – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #20 (FY2026) in the amount of $712,066.14

Joseph Wagner – Motions to approve. KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ADJOURN 
David Alves - Motions to adjourn. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Victoria Gavel 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 2 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated November 3rd, 2025 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne DRAFT



ITEM #7: (a.) Payroll Warrant









ITEM #7: (b.) AP Warrant















ITEM #7: (c.) AP Warrant






